
Introduction
The Vanderveer farm is located on Belldons Road in

Montgomery County, just south of the city limits of
Amsterdam, above NYS Thruway Exit 27, with a com-
manding view of the Mohawk valley (Photo 1).  The prop-
erty was originally part of the Warrensbush or “Warren’s
Town” patent issued to Sir Peter Warren in c.1735. (Lots
82-86 and 155 were sold to a Henry Huff).1 Sometime
after the death of Warren, the upper and lower tracts of
Warrensbush were purchased (including the Huff patent)
by John Watts Jr.2

This Farm was originally derived from lots 82 and 86.
A 1766 map of Warrensbush depicts a dwelling house on
each of these lots.  Research has yet to reveal the identity
of the colonial occupants.  Whoever they were, they were
gone from the properties by the Revolution’s end.  In the
early twentieth century historian Robert M. Hartley
recorded that two neighboring farms, those of the
Rowland and Hunte families, were raided, looted and

burned during the Revolution.  It is possible the settlers
here may have met a similar fate.3

In the 1980s, then Amsterdam City Historian Katherine
Strobeck wrote that “some evidence has been found that
there may have been an earlier structure…[it] probably
would have been a log or wooden building and was de-
stroyed by the raids of Johnson and Brant…”4 Un-
fortunately, the identity of the source for this information,
when it was found, where exactly on the property it was
located, and how it was concluded that this structure was
a casualty of the Revolutionary raids is not mentioned or
explained.  Until further research is done or more evi-
dence is discovered (or rediscovered for that matter), the
validity of this story will have to remain in question, and
the property’s early history will remain a mystery.

The Van Der Veers 
John Vanderveer Sr. (1765-1839) was a descendant of

Cornelius Vanderveer, a Dutch immigrant who settled in
Flatbush (Long Island) in 1659.
Garrett, John’s father, lived in
Monmouth, New Jersey.  Part of the
Battle of Monmouth was fought on
Garrett’s farm in 1778, and resulted in
the loss of his buildings and livestock;
the Redcoats even filled his well with
stone and rubble.5

Jacob Vanderveer, John’s uncle,
was the first in the family to see the
Mohawk Valley, while marching in
the Continental Army.  He was imme-
diately taken by the area’s beauty and
rich fertile soils.  He decided he’d
make a home there as soon as the war
ended:

“…he [Jacob] purchased a farm
containing buildings and im-
provements from John Watts,
the brother-in-law of Sir John
Johnson.  He remained a year,
sowed and reaped a crop of
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The Van Der Veer Farmstead, Town of Florida, Montgomery
County, NY.
By Jason Lampkin

Photo 1.  Aerial view of the Van Der Veer farmstead, c.1950, looking southeast (Courtesy
of the Walter Elwood Museum).  The New World Dutch barn is seen at left, with the swing-
beam barn beyond and the brick house at right.  The NWD barn and house are both ori-
ented north-south.  The site of the foundation of what is speculated to have been a tenan-
t’s house can be seen in the top center of this image.  

        



2 Dutch Barn Preservation Society Newsletter / Fall 2011

wheat, which he sold for one dollar per bushel, and
thus paid off his indebtedness of $1100.  He then re-
turned to his family in New Jersey, who ere long
came with him to the new home.”6

Enticed and encouraged by their uncle Jacob’s success
and satisfaction, John and two of his brothers settled on
land in the town of Glen, purchased for them by their fa-
ther Garrett.  John quickly grew dissatisfied with this ar-
rangement; he wanted to own a farm all to himself.  In
c.1790, he rented lots 82 and 86 from Watts, adjacent to
his uncle Jacob‘s farm in the town of Florida.  He briefly

returned to New Jersey to marry his childhood sweetheart
Catherine Conover in 1791.  John Watts Jr., despite hav-
ing strong loyalist connections (he was the brother-in-law
to John Johnson and a nephew of Sir Peter Warren), some-
how managed to remain well-respected by both sides
during the Revolution and retained all of his assets there-
after.  However, post-Revolution America was filled with
an “early anxiety to get rid of the vexatious ground rents.
But the lease system was well entrenched, and the own-
ers knew well their value; only slowly and gradually was
the right to the soil obtained.”  John Vanderveer and his
neighbors quickly grew impatient with Watts; they
wanted to own their farms, not rent them. Watts finally
gave in and signed a quit-claim for his remaining lease-
holds in 1793.7

Figure 1.  Plan of New World Dutch barn and associated structures.
Corner posts measure 10” by 71/2”.  Three longitudinal tie beams
survive, they are 9 feet above the floor of the barn and measure
91/2” by 61/2” or 71/2” by 51/2” in size.  Studs of exterior walls mea-
sure 7” by 6” and are spaced four feet apart.  Lower transverse
struts (four measured) are 81/2” by 61/2” (two examples), 71/2” by
6” and 7” by 51/2” (Unless noted otherwise, all figures and pho-
tographs are by the author).

Figure 2.  Bent D, the northernmost bent, section looking north.

Photo 2.  The Dutch barn, looking north-northwest, May 2007
(Photo by W. Wheeler).

Photo 3.  Bent C, looking southwest, May 2007 (Photo by W.
Wheeler).

Van Der Veer Farm (continued from page 1)
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John and Catherine are known to have had at least
eight children: Jane, Cornelius, Sarah, Garret, Tunis, John
Jr., Catherine and Henry.  They appear to have followed a
Dutch tradition when naming their children; the first and
second sons and daughters were named after their grand-
parents, the third-born son and daughter were named
after the parents and the remaining children were named
after aunts or uncles.

John also followed the Dutch tradition of leaving the
farm to his youngest son, Henry.  But Henry died young,
with his wife and only child following him soon after
(1837), and the farm fell to the second youngest son, John
Jr., by default.  John Jr. had three children: two daughters,
Catherine and Mary, and a son, Rev. Lauren.

John Sr., who died in 1839, “for the remainder of his
life, lived on his farm in Montgomery county, New York,
where he was fairly prosperous, became a man of some
influence, and was highly esteemed and respected by the
community in which he lived.”8 John Sr. and his wife are
buried behind the Florida Reformed Church in Minaville.

The New World Dutch Barn
The Vanderveer Dutch barn has a four-bent, three-bay

frame with classic proportions and its gables face north
and south (Photos 2 and 3).  It measures approximately 50
feet wide by 40 feet long and its side walls are 15 feet
high (Figures 1 through 3).  The center aisle is 24’-4”
wide. The bents are spaced between 12 feet and 12’-4”
apart. The height of the anchorbeams above the floor is
11’-8”.  The anchorbeams have thru-tenons which do not
project beyond the outside face of the posts (Photos 4 and
5). 

The dimensions and manner of construction suggest a
build date of around 1790-1815.9 It appears that the barn
was built, in part, with recycled materials.  The anchor-
beams of the southern half of the barn appear to be older
and larger than those of the northern half; the southern in-
terior anchorbeam measures 1”-10” x 10”, while the op-
posing interior anchorbeam measures only 111/2” x 81/2”.
How did the barn come to take this form?  The earliest tax
records for the town date back to 1805.  The rolls from

that year indicate that Vanderveer was the fifth-wealthiest
man in town at that time.  Clearly, he had the means to
build a barn completely from scratch.  One theory could
be, as aforementioned, that he did not yet own the land
when he first settled here in 1790 and perhaps he was un-
willing to build a brand new barn until he was certain the
land would be his.  Alternately, Vanderveer may have uti-
lized elements from the colonial-era structures remaining
on the property at that time; recall that the 1766 map of
Warrensbush depicted the property as settled and occu-
pied by that date.  Vanderveer may have chosen to reuse
the materials for practical reasons; why waist time and re-
sources making all new timbers when old ones would do
the job and were there for the taking? Dendro-dating this
barn could help prove or disprove this theory. 

The NWD barn was not configured as a “drive-thru”
barn.  The two northernmost anchorbeams both have a
second beam located about four feet below them. These
beams are larger than the anchorbeams themselves and
presumably served to support a hayloft floor. This setup
would have made it impossible to pass through the barn
on wagon out the northern end.  It does not appear that
there were wagon doors, at least not originally, on the

(continued on page 4)

Figure 3.  Bent A, section looking south.

Photo 4.  Bents B and C, looking west, May 2006.

Photo 5.  Anchor beam and transverse strut junction with anchor-
beam post, showing marriage marks, May 2006.
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side walls either, although the east side is so badly altered
and deteriorated it is impossible to come to a definitive
conclusion with respect to that elevation.  Both side aisles
have animal doors on the south gable and the north gable
may have had them as well but no evidence of them re-
mains. The oldest surviving siding remains on the north
gable wall.  It measures 16” wide and is fastened by
hand-forged square nails.  It seems the barn was meant to
serve as a hay and animal shelter more than a grain pro-
cessing and storage facility.

Overall, the barn is in poor condition. The northeast
corner has almost completely rotted away. The purlin
plate in this corner is partially exposed to the elements
with the interior column tilting badly toward the exterior
wall.  The bottom six feet of the columns have been re-
placed by metal poles which rest on a concrete floor. 

The Vanderveer Dutch barn is one of only two con-
firmed three-aisled NWD barns still standing in the town-
ship of Florida.  The other being the “Smaller Wemp”
barn located on Queen Anne Street (The “Greater” barn
having been restored and relocated to Feura Bush).  A
third barn, which stood along the NYS thruway by the

Bulls Head Road overpass, was dismantled in the 1990s
by Russell Ley, then of Scotia, and currently rests in stor-
age.

Lean-to Addition
To the southwest of the NWD barn is a lean-to struc-

ture with a hand-hewn frame.  Its length is as long as the
Dutch barn itself (40 feet) and is 121/2” wide (Photo 1).
Lean-to structures were often built to store wagons but
this particular example is framed in a way that would
have precluded such a use.  Most likely this building
served as a shelter for small livestock.  It originally stood
apart from the main barn but a 10-foot wide addition was
constructed at a much later date, connecting it to the
southwest corner of the NWD barn.

Swing-Beam Barn
About 90 feet south of the Dutch barn stands an early

threshing barn.  The barn has four bays and measures 58
feet long and 32 feet wide (Photos 6 and 7).  It has a mas-
sive swing-beam measuring 16” high by 12” wide (Photo
8). The swing-beam is fastened to its posts with a double
tenon.  A heavy board with a hole in it for a threshing

Van Der Veer Farm (continued from page 3)

Photo 6.  General view showing the relationship between the
swing-beam barn, at left and the New World Dutch barn, looking
northwest, May 2006.

Photo 7.  Swing-beam barn, looking west-northwest, May 2007
(Photo by W. Wheeler).

Photo 8.  Detail showing swing beam with double tenon connec-
tion to post, May 2006.

Photo 9.  Detail showing attachment on swing-beam for threshing
pole, May 2006.
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pole is still fastened to the center of the swing-beam
(Photo 9).  The entire east wall of the barn is currently
void of all studding and siding.  A couple of the east wall
posts have been braced or supported by old telephone

poles but the rest of the frame is in relatively sound, solid
condition, and exhibits good craftsmanship.  The roof,
which has purlins supported by canted purlin posts, is
fully intact (Photo 8).  A small cattle wing was once at-
tached to the haymow bay of the eastern wall but only
traces of its concrete floor now remain.  If the
Vandeerveers constructed the swing-beam barn at the
same time as the Dutch barn, it may explain why the
Dutch barn was not configured for threshing. 

Additional farm buildings include a small three-bay
barn with hand-hewn frame, located just south of the
brick house, and a 12’ x 16’ corn crib, which stands be-
hind the swing-beam barn.

The Brick House
Across the road from the barns, to the west, stands a

large two-and-a-half story Greek Revival style brick house
(Photos 10 and 11).  It is in a semi-ruinous state but has
been little altered or added on to since it was built and is
a good example of a mid-nineteenth century house built
by a prosperous farmer.  Despite its condition, the house
retains a stately presence that commands respect.

Keystones set into the arches of the carriage house
wing bear the date “June 29, 1846.” (Photo 12).
According to Vanderveer family history, John Sr. first built
the back (kitchen) wing of the house and the carriage
house and front (main) part of the house were added at a
later time.10 While many early homes grew and evolved
in just such a way, it is not the case with this house.  The
foundation was fabricated of cut granite and there are no
joints or breaks to indicate multiple construction phases.

(continued on page 6)Photo 12.  Date on carriage entry keystone, May 2006.

Photo 10.  View of front of house, looking south-southwest, May
2007 (Photo by W. Wheeler).

Figure 4.  First floor plan of the brick house.  The house is located
68 feet from the road.

Photo 11.  View of house, looking west-southwest, May 2006.



The timbers in every part of the house are sawn.  No phys-
ical evidence of any kind was found to suggest that any
part of the house could be older than 1846. Therefore, it
was John Jr., not his father, who built the house in its en-
tirety.

The front of the house has heavy dentils under the
eaves as well as a decorative molding with a spooling pat-
tern. The main entry is adorned by a large granite fron-
tispiece. The inner door surround is wooden; it has fluted
pilasters, sidelights and an architrave crowned by dentil
moldings.

A central hall extends the full depth of the house and
leads back to the kitchen wing.  A prominent staircase
winds up to the attic story (Figure 4).  The hallway doors
and trim once sported a grained finish.  A parlor and din-
ing room flank the hall.  The parlor also stretches the full
depth of the house and originally had two doors leading
to the hall.

The front rooms all had 11 foot tall ceilings.  The fire-
places were designed to burn coal and had marble man-
tles.  Trim work around the doors and windows is of the
shouldered and tapered design, bestowing the imposing
look and feel of an ancient temple upon the rooms. The
ceiling cornices are all made of plaster.

The dining room has a narrow room located behind it
which features a small “butler’s pantry.”  This pantry could
also be accessed from the kitchen.  The kitchen, located

in the back wing, features a fireplace that was once fitted
with a cast iron range/stove.  A small opening to the right
of the hearth served as the door for a beehive baking oven
that projected out into the carriage house.  The Kitchen
also originally had nine doors, two windows and a nar-
row enclosed staircase left of the hearth.

The Kitchen is flanked by three smaller rooms on its
west side. A 1902 deed between members of the Elwood
family may reveal the function of these rooms at that time:

“...retain and reserve the possession, use, occupa-
tion, rent and income of the sitting room, bedroom
and clothes press (?) adjoining the same. The use of
the kitchen pantry, sink-room and bedroom adjoin-
ing the kitchen, the cistern and well, in the dwelling
house on said farm....also, reserve the right to use
any portion of the cellar under said house with the
right to go to and from the same at any time.”
The largest of these three rooms extends six feet into

the carriage house, which occupies the south end of the
wing, and has a cistern directly under its floor; likely mak-
ing it the “sink-room” mentioned in the deed. The middle
room is the smallest of the three and is believed to have
been the “pantry” because it contains evidence of early
shelving. Through process of elimination, the remaining
room would have been the “bedroom.”11

The second story of the house exhibits the same style
of doors, trim work and moldings as the main floor, ex-
cept there are no ceiling cornices and no fireplaces.  The
master bedroom, above the parlor, has two small rooms
behind it, identical in size (Figure 5).  These were possi-
bly utilized as changing rooms or, when the occasion
arose, perhaps a nursery. A stovepipe hole in the bed-
room’s chimney wall suggests it had its own stove as a
heat source and the other main bedroom, across the hall,
was likely heated in the same manner. 

With the main staircase winding all the way to it, and
having been lit by fancifully trimmed eyebrow windows,
the Vanderveer house’s attic story creates an impression
that it was as grand a living area as the chambers below
it.  But it is clear that it was never a finished living space.
The bottom chords of the roof trusses are about chest high
and there are no signs of any heat source such as floor
registers or holes from stove pipes.  Attic spaces in a
house such as this are often envisioned as being servants
quarters, and sometimes they were, but in this instance
the space was most likely used for storage.

Small House
A second house, a companion to the brick house, ap-

pears on nineteenth century historic maps as early as
1853 and disappears prior to 1905.  The house stood
about 500 feet south of the brick house on the same side
of the road.  During the summers of 2006 and 2007,
members of the Community Archaeology Program of
Schenectady County Community College, under the in-
struction of Dr. Ronald Kingsley, located the site of the
house’s foundation and performed a partial excavation
(Photo 13).  The foundation measured 18 feet by 28 feet
and had a stone bulkhead entrance on its south side.  The
foundation walls above ground level were of quarried
stone, while the lower portions were of fieldstone. Based
on the analysis of the artifacts recovered the house was
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Van Der Veer Farm (continued from page 5)

Figure 5.  Second floor plan of the house.  Ceilings are 10 feet high
on this floor (Drawing by the author).



built between c.1830-1860 and is contemporary to the
brick home.  A plausible theory is the small house served
as tenant quarters for the hired farm help. 

The original Vanderveer homestead was obviously to-
tally replaced by the current brick one.  The early nine-
teenth-century tax rolls show John Sr.’s real estate value to
be notably higher than other farms of similar size.  It may
be that a substantially-sized dwelling stood here at that
time as well (before the 1846 house was constructed), or
there may have been more than one house on the prop-
erty.  It is not currently known why the original
Vanderveer house was taken down. If its timbers or parts
were recycled anywhere, there seems to be no clear evi-
dence remaining on the property.  Since the historic
records are vague or mostly silent, and there are no
above-ground clues, a more intensive archeological in-
vestigation would be necessary in order to discover more
about the brick house’s predecessor.

The Elwood Family
In 1867, John Vanderveer Jr. sold the farm to

Henry (1822-1902) and Anna Klock Elwood
(1824-1903).12 Numerous sources credit
Henry’s immigrant ancestor, Richard, with the
building of Fort Klock.  Henry was a “tiller of
the soil” all of his days.  The couple had two
children; a daughter, Harriet, and a son, Judge
Emery Elwood.  Emery (1850-1923), besides
running the family farm which he named “The
Evergreens,” was a Justice of the Peace for the
town of Florida, a county supervisor, a Knight
Templar, and high priest of the local chapter of
Royal Arch Masons.  Emery was first married to
Catherine Lingenfelter, who died in 1906. Later,
he would marry his sister-in-law, Sarah
Lingenfelter.  Emery’s first marriage produced
his only child, Walter Elwood (Photo 14).

Walter (1886-1955) was renowned as a pil-
lar of his community.  He was the founder of
the Amsterdam city museum which bears his
name (Photo 15).  The Walter Elwood Museum
is currently located at historic Guy Park Manor.
According their website, Walter was “an avid

collector of ethnographic materials and natural history
items from every corner of the globe.”13 Walter left the
farmstead to attend Cornell University where he received
a Bachelor of Arts degree.  He served in the Red Cross
during WWI.  Walter became Superintendent of the
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Photo 15. Walter Elwood, seen here in his museum (Courtesy of the
Walter Elwood Museum).Photo 14. The Elwood family with members of the Turner family,

seen on the front stoop of the brick house, c.1904. (Courtesy of the
Walter Elwood Museum).

Photo 13.  Site of what is thought to have been a tenant house, where archeo-
logical excavations were undertaken in 2006 and 2007, looking northeast to-
ward the barns and brick house, May 2006.  
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Amsterdam School District in 1916 and held that position
for the remainder of his life.  In addition to being a world
traveler and artifact collector for his museum, Walter was
also a playwright and a novelist, publishing at least two
books, “Guimo” and “The Terrible Teenenfelters” that had
a wide readership.

In his History of the Mohawk Valley, Nelson Greene
wrote that “Mr. Elwood continues to make his home on
the Elwood farm place . . . Where he has delightfully
pleasant quarters, this hospital old home offering the ideal
situation for the pursuit of his literary labors.”14

Walter called the farm his home as late as 1926, and
although it is said he had a life-long interest in agriculture,
he never was a full-time farmer.  After his father’s death he
leased and/or tried to sell the farm to a neighboring
farmer, Walter Francisco, but this arrangement fell
through, perhaps because of the economic hardships of
the Great Depression.  Around this time a branch of the
Vanderveer family considered reacquiring the property,
but this too did not come to pass.  In 1934, Elwood sold
the farm to the Nadler Brothers Dairy.15

The Nadler Family
The Nadler family was of German/Austrian descent.

Anna Nadler, a widow, settled on the south side of the city
of Amsterdam with her sons around 1890.  Eventually the
family established a milk plant on Collins Street.  By the
mid 1920s their creamery was the largest in the city.  To
sustain the growing business the Nadler’s purchased the
former Vanderveer farm and several others in the area.
The Nadler family never lived on this property; the brick
house was converted into a two-family tenant dwelling
and used by their farm laborers.  The Nadlers Brothers
Dairy ceased operations after three generations in about
1980, although the business continues to exist as an en-
tity on paper and the family still owns the property.  They
have been renting the land to the Terleckey family for
about three decades.

Agriculture
This farm generally followed the typical patterns, prac-

tices, and changes in American agriculture through out its
long history.  The Vanderveers, like many pioneering fam-
ilies of their time, raised small livestock and grew grains.
In 1837, the estate papers of Henry Vanderveer recorded
24 sheep, about nine pounds of wool yarn, and 1 milk
cow. In 1855, John Jr. had 26 sheep, three milk cows, and
sold 60 pounds of wool.16

In reflection of the general westward shift of wheat pro-
duction areas during the nineteenth century the Elwoods
focused on dairy production.  They had 24 milk cows in
1875, which was well above the average herd size for that
time, and were one of the largest cheese producers in the
county.  By the 1920s, the farm’s milking herd had shrunk
in half.17

By the time of the Nadler occupation, farmers had
moved away from making cheese and focused on fluid
milk sales.  The Nadlers adapted the barns to house as

many cows as possible.  At least three milk houses were
added on or placed in the Dutch barn.  The Nadlers also
built a large dairy barn (no longer standing) at the inter-
section of Route 30, Belldons Road and Thruview Drive.
The barn was quite modern for its day; it featured a milk-
ing parlor with large glass windows so motorists could
pull off the road and watch the cows being milked.  It is
also said to have had the first milk house with hot water,
a convenience which many local rural folks did not yet
have in their own homes.  The Nadler’s supplied milk to
the local families, schools, and to the New York City mar-
ket.18 They competed with over 30 other milk dealers
within Amsterdam during the early years of their business.
By 1935, just 10 were listed in the city’s directory and that
number, as well as the number of farmers, decreased dra-
matically as the century wore on.  The American dairy in-
dustry continues to decline today.  Land-wise, this prop-
erty is still a functioning farm.  The Terleckey family
mainly raises hay here and sometimes grows a small
amount corn.

Conclusion
The Vanderveer-Elwood-Nadler property has long

since entered “the winter” of its years and the farm land
faces an uncertain future.  Fate has not been kind to the
brick house.  Decades of vacancy and vandalism have left
it a shell of its former self.  The back wing is mostly roof-
less and collapsing, and in the process it is pulling the
back wall of the main house down with it.  The roof of the
front of the house has started to fail; one can stand in parts
of the cellar and look up all the way to the attic where the
sky shines through holes in the roof.  Many have tried to
purchase and save the house to no avail and the once-
proud home will presumably deteriorate until it is no
more.

There remains a small glimmer of hope for the barns.
Although in a somewhat forlorn state, they are still in re-
storable condition and have yet to be relegated to derelict
status.  They still earn their keep, sheltering the Terleckey’s
hay crop.  However, since the barns are mostly left open
and exposed on their eastern sides, if they were ever left
empty on the inside a winter wind from that direction
could potentially do severe damage or bring them down
all together. 

A housing development was proposed for the property
in 2006, prior to the recent recession.  A pamphlet circu-
lated within the community at that time explained that the
development would sprawl out over 90 acres on the
northeast side of Belldons Road.  It would contain about
100 housing units, being a mixture of single family
homes, condos and townhouse type structures.
Permission to extend Amsterdam’s water and sewer lines
under the thruway to the proposed site was granted but
the cost of this undertaking has so far proved cost pro-
hibitive. 

This property has long stirred the imagination and in-
voked the curiosity of the nearby community and passers-
by for generations.  Sadly, like many old farmsteads before
it, it will probably lose its agricultural identity to suburban
sprawl and its buildings will likely fade into history. 

Van Der Veer Farm (continued from page 7)
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Two years ago I presented a group of real estate ad-
vertisements for farmsteads culled from New Jersey and
Pennsylvania newspapers predating 1791 in the News-
letter. Each of those notices contained reference to a
New World Dutch barn as a component of the farm-
stead.  For this issue I’ve pulled together a group of sim-
ilar advertisements for farms located in the vicinity of
Albany, located within the present-day Albany,
Schenectady, Saratoga, Columbia, and Rensselaer coun-
ties.  These ads span the period from just after the
Revolution until 1800.  It is curious to note how few ad-
vertisements from this region used the term “Dutch
barn” at that time; one might speculate that the many
ads which simply refer to a barn on the property—par-
ticularly those which go on to describe a building
roughly square in plan—refer to New World Dutch
barns.  Why then, was the term not more frequently ap-

plied in the region?  One possible answer is that to the
farmers in the region these were simply ‘barns’; the ap-
plication of the cultural identifier “Dutch” may have
been of more use in areas where the types of barns con-
structed were more varied.  

Also of interest to note when assessing this small
group of documents is that almost all of them are for
medium-to-large scale farms, chiefly owned by people
at the upper end of the economic spectrum.  The higher
value of these farms would have meant that a prospec-
tive purchaser would likely have had to have been found
from a broader geographic area, rather than from the
neighborhood.  Was, then, the term “Dutch barn” intro-
duced chiefly for the benefit of an audience outside of
the more conservative areas of the New World Dutch
cultural hearth?

(continued on page 10)

Eighteenth-Century Newspaper Descriptions of Albany-Area
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Eighteenth-Century Newspaper Descriptions
(continued from page 9)

4.  Albany Gazette, 14 July 1791, p. 1.

1.  New-York Packet, 29 July 1784, supplement p. 3.

3.  Albany Gazette, 3 January
1788, p. 4.

2.  New-York Daily Advertiser, 7 March 1788, p. 4.

5.  American Spy (Lansing-
burgh, NY), 27 January 1792, 
p. 1.

6.   Albany Gazette, 22 March 1792, p. 3.
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8.  Albany Gazette, 30 October 1794, p. 3.

7.  Albany Gazette, 25 February 1793, p. 3.

(continued on page 12)

9.  Albany Gazette, 18 December 1794, p. 4.

10.  Albany Gazette, 18 March 1796, p. 2.

11.  Albany Centinel, 27 April 1798, p. 1.
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